Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 9 No. 95 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (1I1SD) Friday 15, May 1998
CBD COP-4 HIGHLIGHTS Two paragraphs on cooperation with IFF were deleted by the
THURSDAY 14 MAY, 1998 EU, CANADA and PERU. AUSTRIA and PERLaled for

On the ninth and penultimate day of the Fourth _I\/Ieeting_oftﬁﬁggg%eq,lgnn%edzgamgﬂg Og&?S&;R‘ée,,;gﬂgfpeﬂgﬁmﬂgke_
Conference of the Parties (COP-4) to the Convention on Bmloﬁélders"yin addition to ol% makers and scientists. The
ical Diversity (CBD), delegates continued to meet in contact SEYCHELLES st pd Y. hing “indi " biodiity |
groups throughout the day. WWimg Group | (WG-1) reconvened stressed enriching “indigenous” biodsrty in

; g ) ; rest plantatins. NEW ZEALAND alled for limiting conserva-
?v?r?ir?g% g%%?gvnedmmggigg%us? I (WG-II) reconvened in ﬂﬁ%n to forests “other thaplantation forests.” She withdrew the

suggestion on the understanding that Newlded is free to treat
WORKING GROUP | its exotic pine plantations as industrial plantaipto be reflected
WG-I met in the afternoon to review a Friends of the Chair in WG-I's report. MALI added “poverty” to a list of causes of
draft decision on agricultural biodiversity (UNEP/CBD/COP/4iodiversity loss. The SEYCHELLES added “alien species,”
WG.1/CRP.3). On threats of technology, known asfiieator  which CANADA qualified to “harmful.” The SEYCHELLES,
technology,” to biodiversity, AUSTRALIA, IRONESIA, with MALI, qualified “uncontrolled” forest fires in the same list.
MALAYSIA, the US, and CANADA supported deletion of the WG-I next considered a Friends of the Chair draft decision on
bracketed text referring to “terminator technology.” RWANDA, Access and Benefit-sharing (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/WG.1/CRP.5).
PAKISTAN, BURKINA FASO and TANZANIA supported The G77/CHINA, COLOMBIA, KENYA, NORWAY,
removing the brackets. Based on informal consultations betw@anRKINA FASO, INDIA and BOLIVIA supported text making
Parties, INDONESIA proposed aropromise “reiterabg the  access and benefit-sharing a “standing” item for the COP.
precautionary appro&g’ but deleting the bracketed text referrin@OLIVIA preferred “standing and ariority.” NEW ZEALAND,
to terminator technology andpladng “threats” with “onse-  the EU, the EC and SWITZERLAND favored “rotating” rather
quences.” The decision was approved with the amendments anen “standing.” The paragraph waspaoved with brackets.
text on financial mechanisms remaining in brackets. COLOMBIA stressedhat benefit sharing should be wider in
The draft decision and work programme on forest biologicalcope than just genetic resources.

diversity was then reviewed (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/WG.1/CRP.4). The G77/CHINA, ETHIOPIA, RWANDA, INDIA and
One bracketed option for estahing an intersessional body wasTURKEY advocated lifting brackets from a paragraph which
deleted. The UK, on behalf of the EU, SWEDENDIONESIA  statesx situcollections acquired prior to the CBD’s entry into
and COLOMBIA supported a seconpltion establishing aad  force be brought under the scope of the Convention. The EU said
hocexpert group to meet prior/subsequent to SBSTTA meetingse issue is being addressed by the FAO and, along with the EC,
which would elaborate the work programme, review its imple- JAPAN, SWEDEN and AUSTRALIA supported deleting the
mentaton, and advise SBSTTA and the COP on piiation of  paragraph.. ETHIOPIA expressed dismay at the EU’s request,
activities. PERU alteratively supported establishing “ad hoc  emphasizing that the FAO IU leaves out a lot of genetic
working group” to facilitate and revise the work programme  resources. The text remained bracketed.
implementation, meet prior to SBSTTA, and provide input to The G77/CHINA and other delegations supported an open-
SBSTTA and the COP. JAPAN warned about the cost of estabended working group, while the EU called for an expert panel.
lishing a group. The twalternatives were left braclest, pending The EU proposed the panel look only at genetic resources under
discussion on the budget and thedus operandi the CBD, so as not to duplicate work under the FAO. As no

~ The SEYCHELLES and others objected to prioritizing foregfonsensus could be reached, the Chair nominated Norway to
biodiversity over other thematic areas in a bracketed paragraphioderate an informal group of interested parties and the rest of
on GEF resources. Compromise text gives it “high” fitjoThe  the text was approved in brackets.
paragraph was left pending discussion in connection to financial WG-| adopted the draft decision on Implementation of Article
resources. On potential impacts of varioussoreated human  g(j) and Related Provisions (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/WG.1/CRP.6),
activities and cooperation with the Secriteof the UNFCCC,  subject to deliberation on two bracketed paragraphs on funding
SOUTH AFRICA added “and other ecosystems” receiving sucind the timing of future SBSTTA meetings in the budget and
impacts. PAPUA NEW GUINEA deleted language on devel- modus operandiontact groups. BRAZIL reserved their position
oping common priorities. BURKINA FASO and SENEGAL  on the draft decision.
added references to the CCD. CAMEROON and others stressed The Chair of the Article 8(j) contact group noted that, after the
arid and semi-arid regions and MALI called for attentionto  exclusion of local and indigenous community representatives at
savannahs. Both of these were incorporated into the work  the request of one Party prior to negotiations, many Parties
programme. expressed regret. The Chsiressedhat this process should not
be taken as a precedent for the operation of any other contact or

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulletin @&enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Richard Campbell <richcam@hotmail.com>, Deborah Dayenport
<ddavenp@emory.edu>, Laura Ivers <laurai@iisd.org>, Leila Mead <leila@interport.net> and Tiffany Prather <tprather@iigfitalry¥42irdry by Jeff Andersop
<janderson@iisd.ca>.The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James "KimokBooe@i\ld.org>. The
Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation, the Government of Canadal{@#rpagt the United States (through
USAID). General Support for the Bulletin during 1998 is provided by the The Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affastsiaf Boited Kingdom Department for
International Development (DFID), the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU), the Swiss Office for Environment, Rdresrsdacape, the European
Community (DG-XI), the Government of NorwayNDP and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. Funding for the French version has been provided by ACCT
IEPF, with support from the French Ministry of Cooperation and the Québec Ministry of the Environment and Wildlife. The &ullee contacted by e-mail|at
<enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax:24P-644-0206. IISD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floc
Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinions expressediatitieNegotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views gf 1ISD
and other funders. Excerpts from tharth Negotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citatjon. For
permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versioBsllgftthare sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be
found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image was taken above New York City (c)1888dTEarth, Inc. http:/
livingearth.com. For information on tii&arth Negotiations Bulletirsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




‘A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Friday 15, May 1998 @Ean‘h Negotiations Bulletin Vol. 9 No. 95 Page 2

working group of the CBD or other UN process. An indigenous  The draft decision on natial reports by Parties was

peoples’ and local communities’ representative, supported by presented and approved (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/WG.2/CRP.7). A

applause, expressed his concern and disappointment about thiraft decision on the review of the operations of the Convention

perceived discrimination manifested by the Parties to the CBDwyith an addendum on tlmeodus operandif SBSTTA and an

and cited numerous precedents of their pawiggm in the UN annex to the decision were presented for approval (UNEP/CBD/

system, as well as UN rules of procedure that provide guidanc€OP/4/WG.2/CRP.&and UNEP/CBD/COP/4/WG.2/CRP.8/

for participation. Add.1) and ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA requested that the
documents be placed in brackets until issues relatéciandial

WORKING GROUP Il mechanisms are resolved. The draft report on WG-Il was also

WG-Il considered the draft decision on measures for imple-
menting the convention. On impact assessment and minimiziﬂﬂtroCluced and approved (UNEP/CBD/COP/ANEIE.1).

adverse effects (UNEP/CBD/COP/4/WG.2/CRP.2), ETHIOPIACONTACT GROUPS

suggested replacement text, “Notes that this decision is without While most contact groups had finalized their work on draft

prejudice to the consideration of the issues oflltgtand redress decisions, a few continued to meetntihghout thalay.

in the negotiations of the Protocol on Biosafety,” afiiththis Modus operandiOn national reports, delegates discussed

modification the text was approved. voluntary natimal report assessments and decided on a provision
On a draft decision approved on public education and awafer assessment based on advice from SBSTTA, with a view to

ness (UNEP/CBD/4/WG.2/CRP.3) MARSHALL ISLANDS  developing guidance for future reports. In an annex to the draft

deleted text peripheral to a call for parties to propose projects dacision listing elements of guidelines for SBSTTA recommen-

public education and awareness when requesting assistance dations on the preparationmdtional reports, “possible specifica-

through the financial mechanism. tions of questions to be answered” was deleted and “the possible
On a draft decision approved on incentive measures (UNEBRée of nationally developed indicators” was moved to the guide-

CBD/4/WG.2/CRP.4) NEW ZEAAND widened the evaluation line detailing information recommended for inclusiomaiional

to include cultural and ethical factors in the development of  reports.

incentive measures, and INDONESIA furtlzeided soial The group considered a revised draft decision generated by ar

factors. NEW ZEALAND limited a request for information on informal drafting group on institutieal mattersand the work

design andmplementation of incentive measures in national programme. Most delegates supported: a compromise decision tc

reports to pertain only to “secondational reports. The draft hold a three to five day open-ended meeting to improve prepara-

decision was approved with text bracketed pending dalitoeys tions for and conduct of the COP; holding COP-5 in the second

of other contact groups. guarter of 2000; a two week COP; distribution of the provisional
WG-Il approved two draft decisions from the contact groupannotated agendmd awailable support documents six months

on review of the effectiveness of the financial mechanism andprior to the COP; preparation of a handbodktiag COP deci-

additional finan@l resources, with one provision bracketed  sions; and review of the work programme in light of develop-

pending the outcome of the contact groupradus operandi ments in implementation of the Convention.
(UNEP/CBD/COP/4/WG./CRP.1 and UNEP/CBD/COP/WG.2/ Delegates postponed adoption of the SBST@dus oper-
CRP.5). andiuntil the annex detailing it is agreed upon. Delegates also

WG-II considered “Guidance to the Financial Mechanism,”expressed difficulty in addressing programme assessment until
an informal compilation of recommendations to the GEF from the COPmodus operands resolved.
debate in a sub-contact group of the contact group ofrthedial On future COP agendas, delegations supported a proposal for
mechanism. A procedural issue concerninglidation of its the agenda structure which includes standing issues, kewticem
deliberations in the forest biodiversity contact group and WG-lissues, cross-cutting issues and CBD relations with other themati-
quickly escalated into a highly contentious debate. Intrinduc cally relevant conventions. Several dgées stressed that
the document, the Chair of thentact group on therfancial thematic issues must be relevant to all Parties.dasds
mechanism moved for deletion of paragraph 4 on the grohats proposed thematic topics, includingter alia, protected area
it had already been dealt with in another group. The EU and conservation, public awareness, arid and semi-arid ecosystems
others objected stngly on the basithat it had been agreed that and forests. Suggested cross-cutting issudsded, among
all guidance to the GEF would be considered in a single decisiothers, IPR, access to genetic resources, benefit shariadjemd
The EU threatened to bracket paragraphs relating to the firgpecies. One delegation notédt biennial COPs could result in
cial mechanism in all other draft decisions. The Chair of WG-llpostponing considation of important issues. Another delegate
sought to approve the decision with the bracketing of paragrafguggested that SBSTTA be resgible for follow-up on work
4, but delegates from the contact group confirthedlthe group programmes to steanline the COP’s agenda.
consensus had been that the document should not be approv?ﬂ Y¥YE CORRIDORS

this tasis. The Chanuled that she would report to the plenary As the midnight hour approached, and it became increasingly

that WG-Il did not reach agreement and that the text therefore . :
retained brackets around'g':he entire text; paragraph 4; and fo ifficult to sete tfhe forest Uc/roggh tge treetS, delg{ﬁates pﬁssmgdead

' . ’ S ' r en route from one Working Group to another exchange
relevant paragraphs bracketed in the draft decision from the fo ildered glancesnd asked in vain “What is going on?”

contact group, which she proposed to substitute for the brack ; p PR
paragraph 4 as suggested by the Chair of the contact group o onses offered summed up the evening as “pandemonium

financial mechanism. She stated her understandiagste ‘chaos.”

Bureau had agreed that no relevant bracketed paragraphs could be THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

changed substantively by the contact group on the financial Plenary: Plenary will convene at 10:00am in Hall C.
mechanism and that the decision on forest bidigehad In the Corridors : The return of Klaus Tépfer, Executive
already been agreed in its entirety. Director of UNEP.

The EU said it was not for the Bureau to decide how the COP
conducts its proceedings, and that it would raise its grave
concerns with her ruling in plenary. IRAN threatened to bracket
decisions previously approved by WG-II if the EU bracketed any
text.



